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RED OAK, TEXAS
FINANCE DEPARTMENT
200 LAKEVIEW PKWY

RED OAK, TX 75154

972-617-3638

MARCH 1, 2017

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Red Oak, Texas

Submitted herewith is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Red Oak (the "City")
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the completeness
and fairness of the presentation, including disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects. The data is reported in a manner designed to present
fairly the fmancial position and results of operations of the various funds of the City. To enable the reader to gain
an understanding of the City's fmancial activities, all necessary disclosures have been included .
The CAFR is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States
of Ame1ica established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The CAFR is presented in
three sections: introductory, financial and statistical. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the
City's organizational chart, and a list of p1incipal officials. The fmancial section includes the management's
discussion and analysis (MD&A), the governn1ent-wide and fund financial statements, notes to basic fmancial
statements, required supplemental information, other supplemental information, as well as the independent
auditor's report on the basic fmancial statements. The Statistical section includes selected fmancial and
demographic information which is presented on a multi-year basis.
The MD&A is a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements. The
MD&A can be found immediately following the independent auditor's report. This transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
THE R EPORTJNG ENTITY

The City was incorporated in 1849 under the general laws of the State of Texas . The City operates under a
council-manager form of government. The City provides a fu ll range of municipal services authorized by statute
or charter. These services include police and fire protection, water and wastewater services, the construction and
maintenance of streets, infrastructure and other related facilities, code enforcement, building inspections, parks
and recreation, library, public improvements, planning and zoning, economic development, and general
administrative services.
The CAFR includes all funds of the City. This report includes all governn1ent activities, organizations and
functions for which the City is financially accountable. The criteria used in determining activities to be reported
within the City's basic financial statements are based upon and consistent with those set forth by the GASB.
Based upon these ctiteria, the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) and the Industrial Development
Corporation (IDC) are discretely presented component units.
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THE CITY

The City of Red Oak (the "City" or "Red Oak") is a political subdivision and municipal corporation of the State,
duly organized and existing under the laws of the State, including the City's Home Rule Charter. The City flrst
adopted its Home Rule Charter in 1997. The City operates under a CounciVManager form of government with a
City Council compri sed of the Mayor and five Councilmembers. The Mayor and City Councilmembers are
elected for staggered three-year terms. The City Manager is the chief administrative officer for the City. The
2000 Census population for the City was 5,235, The 2010 Census population for Red Oak was 10,769, and
North Central Texas Council of Governments projects by the year 2030, Red Oak's population will grow to
63,329. The City covers approximately 15.06 square miles.
The City is located in norihern Ellis County, 20 miles south of downtown Dallas and is served by a major
interstate highway I-35E bisecting the City, and I-20 located nine miles north. Red Oak is also bisected by state
highways 664 and 342 giving easy access in all directions. Red Oak is uniquely situated to provide easy
accessibility to the entire North Texas area. The close proxinuty to job opportunities in Dallas, Fort Worth and
the Mid-Cities continues to contribute to growth in the City. The City is a member of the Best-Southwest
Communities, which also consists of Cedar Hill, Desoto, Duncanville and Lancaster.
The City is home to three business parks. Additionally, there are two industrial parks that total 390 acres. All are
convenient to I-35E.
EDUCATION

The Red Oak Independent School District (the "District") consists of 1 high school serving grades 9 through
12; 1 nuddle school serving grades 6-8; and 5 elementary schools serving Pre-K through 5. The District employs
726 persons. Quality instruction is provided by a qualified teaching staff, more than 11% of whom have obtained
graduate degrees. Four District campuses are recognized for their achievements on the state standardized test.
Texas State Technical College - North Texas campus located in Red Oak ("TSTC Norih Texas") held its
ground breaking ceremony on January 24, 2014. In August of 2014, Phase I of the TSTC North Texas campus
opened its 102,000 sf, Industrial Technology Center. TSTC North Texas, Phase I, represents a $10 million dollar
capital investment in Red Oak. TSTC North Texas will serve Ellis County and the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex.
The TSTC North Texas campus in Red Oak originated when State Representative Jim Pitts and TSTC Chancellor
Michael L. Reeser began conversations with Red Oak lSD Superintendent, Dr. Scott Niven. TSTC North Texas
is a result of a collaborative initiative and strong support from State Senator Brian Birdwell, Representative Pitts,
Superintendent Niven, and City officials in order to enhance the growing workforce-development needs in Ellis
County.
The City is readily accessible to higher education facilities with many junior colleges, colleges and universities
within conunuting distance. In addition, an adult education program is provided within the City in conjunction
with the Ellis Cot.mty Community Colleges.
HOUSING

The City offers a diversity of new housing, ranging in price from $90,000 to over $350,000. Red Oak Valley Golf
Course is privately owned and is located convenient to I-35E.
F INANC IAL INSTITUTIONS

Six Banks presently serve the City. They include Prosperity Bank, Wells Fargo Bank, Citizens National Bank,
Community National Bank & Trust, First National Bank and Interbank in Red Oak.
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COMMUNITY SERVICES

Complete medical and dental treatment is available within the City. Two medical doctors and two dentists
practice in the City, and three area hospitals are located a few minutes away. Baylor Medical Center, located 10
miles away in Waxahachie, Medical Center at Lancaster, located 6 miles away, and Methodist Medical Center, a
major healthcare facility in Dallas County is located 20 miles away. A Motel 6 and a Comfort Irmnow operate in
the City, and Comfort Inn & Suites adding 18,840 SF for an additional 32 new rooms, was recently approved to
be built.
The City operates two mwucipal parks and a nature center. Several lakes are within an hour's drive of the City.
Joe Pool Lake is located 30 minutes away and is a multi-purpose water resource project covering approximately
7,500 acres. Cedar Hill State Park adjoins Joe Pool Lake with abundant camping, luking, and picnicking
facilities. Several religious faiths are represented in the nine churches established in the City.
The Metroplex offers a wide array of entertainment, cultural and sports activities, including the Dallas Zoo, Six
Flags Over Texas, Dallas Symphony Orchestra, Dallas Theater Center, and many museums. Professional
football , baseball, basketball, and soccer, as well as several college teams, are available to area residents.
L'IDUSTRY

Triumph Aerostructures - Vought aircraft Division production facilities consist of 2 buildings. The 240,000
square feet $75 million facility sits on 28 acres and manufactures wings for Bombardier 7000/8000 business jets
along with a second building, (646,000sf), advanced aerospace and aircraft technology facility for the
manufacturing, engineering, and executive offices. A labor force of 890 plus 227 contract labor employees are
employed by the Triumph facility in Red Oak.
FINANCIAL PLANNING AND FISCAL POLICIES

The City continues to update the master plans to guide the City's long-term growth and financial planning.
Significant master p lanning activity includes: 1) Comprehensive land u se and thoroughfare plan, 2) Parks master
plan, and a 3) Strategic Plan.
Utilizing these plans, the City annually updates a five-year capital improvement plan. The City also maintains a
police and fire department staffmg plan as part of the strategic plan. These plans are used to detennine budget
allocations to the various departments and activities of the City.
The City's fiscal management policy requires a rninimum fund balance for numerous funds. The fund balance
reserve plan is guiding the City to meeting the fund balance reserve plans for each of the funds.
ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

City management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure
that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or rnisuse. Management must also ensure that adequate
accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with GAAP. The
internal control structure designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.
All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework.
The City's accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified accrual basis,
with revenues recognized when measurable and available, and expenditures recorded when the liability is
incurred. Proprietary operations are maintained on full accrual basis.
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The objective of budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions contained in the annual budget
approved by the City Council. Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds and debt service funds are
included in the annual budget. The budget is developed and controlled at the department level although
appropriations are set at the fund level, and encumbrances are entered at the time a purchase order is issued.
Outstanding encumbrance's lapse at fiscal year-end, and the subsequent year's budget must absorb the
expenditures when incurred. Separate multi-year budgets are developed for the capital projects funds.
OTHER INFORMATlON

Independent Audit:
The City Charter requires an annual audit of the books of account fmancial records and transaction of all
departments of the City. The City charter specifies that such audit be conducted by independent auditors selected
by the City Council. Judd, Thomas, Smith & Company, P.C. was selected by the City Council to conduct this
year's audit. The independent auditor's report on the basic financial statements is included in the financial section
of this report.
Certificate of Achievement:
This is the fifth year the City has submitted their comprehensive annual fmancial report ("CAFR") to be reviewed
for the Cettificate of Achievement. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award that recognizes
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR, whose contents conform to program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both GAAP
and applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. The City has received the Certificate of
Achievement for the Fiscal Year 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015. We believe the cunent report confom1s to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements and are submitting the 2016 CAFR to GFOA.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The finance department continues to try to reach new standards for financial reporting within the City. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedication and helpfulness of the staff.
We would like to express our appreciation to all employees who assisted and contributed to its presentation.
We would also like to thank the members of the City Council for their interest and support in planning and
conduction the financial operations of the City in a responsible manner.

~
Director of Finance
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FINANCIAL SECTION

• judd thomas
•••
••••
certified public accountants & advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ' REPORT
To the Mayor and City Council
City of R ed Oak, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infom1ation of the City of Red Oak Texas (the
"City"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

12222 Merit Drive
Suite 1900
Dallas, TX 75251-3209

214.296.0900 Main
800.304.4887 Toll Free
972.661.3651 Fax

judd thomas.com

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Red Oak, Texas as of September 30, 2016, and the
respective changes in fmancia1 position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis (pages 3 through 11), budgetary comparison information for major governmental
funds and proprietary funds (pages 48 and 59, respectively) and other required supplementary information
(pages 49 through 50) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by the Governmental Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of fmancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We. have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The schedules presented for the combining and individual
nonmajor funds financials (pages 51 through 58), supplementary financial data (pages 60 through 61), and the
statistical schedules (pages 62 through 89) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. These schedules are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the fmancial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material

respectsill rela~~nc:J::: w~ ~ t~
Dallas, Texas
March 1, 2017
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
As management o f the City of Red Oak, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the frnancial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished
in our letter of transmittal, which can be found preceding this report.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
•

On a government-wide basis, the assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $14,673,2 13 (Net Position). Of this amount, $3,747,438 (unrestricted Net Position) may be
used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

•

On a government-wide basis, the City's total Net Position increased by $ 1,93 1,382. This increase is
attributable largely to additional tax collections.

•

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governrnental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $14,769,872. Approximately 10.69% of this total amount, $ 1,580,167 is unreserved and
available for use at the City's discretion.

•

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $ 1,580,167 or
16.3% of the total General Fund expenditures.

•

The City's outstanding debt increased by $4,790,296 or 17 %during the current fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The
City's basic frnancial statements are comprised of three components: 1) governrnent-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic frnancial statements themselves.
Government-wide Financial Statements. The governrnent-wide frnancial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City's frnances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as Net Position. Over time, increases or decreases in Net Position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's Net Position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in Net Position are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless o f the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
compensated absences).
Both of the government-wide frnancial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by
taxes and intergoverrunental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities
of the City include general government, public safety, cultural and recreational, public works, industrial development
and economic development. The business-type activities o f the City include utility operations.
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The R ed Oak Economic Development Corporation and Red Oak Industrial Development Corporation, although
legally sep arate, functions for all practical purposes as a department of the City, and therefore has been included as
an integral part of tl1e primary government.
The government-wide fmancial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.
F und Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of re lated accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fmance-re lated legal requirements.
All of the funds of tl1e City can b e divided into two categories- governmental funds and proprietary ftmds.
Governmental F unds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide fmancial statements. However, unlike the government-wide fmancial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government's near-term fmancing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide fmancial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government's near-term fmancing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconcilia tion to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
The City maintains eight individual governmental funds. Infonnation is presented separately in the Governmental
Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances for the General, Industrial Development Corporation, and Economic Development Corporation funds, all
of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other five fi.mds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund, Industrial Development Corporation and the
Economic Development Corporation. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the General Fund
Industrial D evelopment Corporation and the Economic Development Corporation. to demonstrate compliance with
these budgets.
The basic governmental fund fmancial statements can be found on pages 14-17 of this report.
Proprietary Funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fi.md. The enterprise fund is used to report the same
functions presented as business-type ac tivities in the government-wide fmancial statements. The City uses the
enterprise fund to account for its utility operations.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial sta tements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund fmancial statements provide separa te information for the Utility Fund since it is
considered to be a major fund of the City.
The basic proprietary fund fmancial statements can be found on pages 18-20 of this report.
The notes provide add itional infom1ation that is essential to a full
Notes to the Financial S ta t ements.
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund fmancial statements. The notes to the fmancial
state ments can be found on pages 21-4 7 o f this report.
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Other Inform ation. In addition to the basic frnancial statements and accompanying notes, tllis report also presents
combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governn1ental f1mds. Combining and
individual statements and schedules can be found on pages 48-58 of this report.
GOVER.l~MENT-WIDE

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, Net Position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's frnancial position. In the
case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $ 10,5 12,562 as of September 30,2016.

Current and other assets
Capital assets
Deferred outflow~ of resources
Total assets and deferred outf!O\'-'~

s

Long tenn liabilities
Other liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Governmental Activities
2015
20 16
15,708,506 s 9,608,037
14,371 ,902
14,388,281
750,04 1
244,450
30,830,449
24,240,768

18,021,907
1,281,428

16,904,320

10,707,3 10
1,616,703
12,718
12,336,731

(61,393)
13,097,292
890,230
13,926, 129 $

3,34 1,2 13
5,182,954
3,379,870
11 ,904,037

(2, 110,124)

14,553,208
2,35 1,112

$

s

Business-Type Activities
2016
2015
3,500,905 $
1,880,896
15,805,067
15,98 1,668
744,447
768,049
20,050,419
18,630,613

19,303,335

$

2,857,208
747,084 $

$

32,575, 115
3,632,540

16,728,373
1,063,777
669
17,792,8 19

(557,294)
1,395,088
837,794

Total
2016
19,209,41 1 s
30,176,969
1,494,488
50,880,868

$

20 15
11,488,933
30,369,949
1,012,499
42,871,381

36,207,655

27,435,683
2,680,480
13,387
30,129,550

(2, 171,517)
13,097,292
3,747,438
14,673,2 13 $

2,783,919
5,182,954
4,774,958
12,741,83 1

A portion of the City's Net Position (-$2, 17 1,5 17 or -21 %) reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., land,
construction in progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment and infrastructure), less any debt used
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide service to citizens;
consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
An additional portion of the City's Net Position (13,097,292 or 89%) represents resources that are subject to external
restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted Net Position ($3,747,438 or 26%) may
be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, tile City is able to report positive balances in three categories of Net Position,
boili for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate category - governmental activities and business-type
activities.
Analysis of the Ci ty's Operations: T he following table provides a summary of the City's operations for the year
ended September 30, 20 16. On a government-wide basis, governn1ental activities increased the City's Net Position
by $2,022,092 and business-type activities decreased the City's Net Position by $90,7 10.
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CITY OF RED OAK'S CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Govemmental Activities
2016
2015
Revenues:
Program revenues:
01arges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales tax
Franchise tax
Hotel occupancy ta.x
Alcoholic beverage ta.x
Investment earnings
Saleofland
tvliscellaneous
Total revenues

s

1,3-t3,23 1
608,3 11

s

Business-Type Activities
2016
20 15

1,378,571
339,721

s

6,369,552

s

Total
2016

5,577,700

4,722,883
3,897,973
759,708
165,188
12,50 1
117,567
1,148,148
166,420
12,941 ,930

4,188,900
4,072,836
780,644
122,882
8,663
108,996

1,412

88 1

279,436
11 ,280,649

6,370,964

1,588,331
6,781,475
367,427
1,601,788
63,339
188,748
328,730

1,213,141
6,324,778
355,288
1,407,964
85,544
134,769
444,474

10,919,838

9,965,958

2,022,092

1,3 14,691

(90,710)

2,022,092

1,3 14,691

11 ,904,037

10,750, 174

s

7,712,783
608,311

2015

s

6,956,271
339,721

5,578,58 1

4,722,883
3,897,973
759,708
165,188
12,50 1
11 8,979
1,148,148
166,420
19,312,894

279,436
16,859,230

5,672,450
5,672,450

1,588,331
6,781,475
367,427
1,601,788
63,339
188,748
328,730
6,461,674
I7,381,5 12

1,2 13,141
6,324,778
355,288
1,407,964
85,544
134,769
444,474
5,672,450
15,638,408

(93,869)

1,93 1,382

1,220,822

(90,710)

(93,869)

1,931,382

1,220,822

837,794

940,128

12,74 1,831

13,845,291

4,188,900
4,072,836
780,644
122,882
8,663
109,877

Expenses:
General government

Public safety
Cultural and recreational
Public works
Industrial development
Economic development
Interest on long-tenn debt
Utility
Total expenses
Change in net position before transfers
Transfers
Change in net position
Net position- beginning,
Prior period adj ustment
Net position - ending

6,461,674
6,461,674

(8,465)

(1 60,828)

s

13,926, 129

s

11 ,904,037

s

747,084

s

837,794

================

(169,293)

s

14,673,213

s

14,896,820

FINAl'l"CIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERl~MENT'S FUNDS
Governmental F unds: The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's frnancing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$ 14,769,872. Approximately 10.6% of this total amount ($1,580,167) constitutes unreserved fund balance. The
remainder o f the fund balance is not available for new spending because it has already been restricted or committed
for purposes detailed on the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds on page 14.
The General Fund is the chief operating fund o f the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $ 1,580, 167, while total fund balance reached $ 1,950,968. As a measure of the
General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total
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fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 16.3% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 20.2% of that same amount.
The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased $86,919 during the current fiscal year. The increase is
attributable to capital outlay for purchase of equipment from which bond proceeds were collected in the prior fiscal
year.
The Industri~l Development Corporation fund has a total fund balance of $4, 154,770. The net increase in fund
balance during the current year in the Industrial Development Corporation fund was $1,28 1,625.
The Economic Development Corporation fund has a total fund balance of $4,044,282 . The net increase in fLmd
balance during the current year in the Economic Development Corporation fund was $52,52 1.
Proprietary Funds: The City's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide frnancial statements, but in more detail.
Unrestricted Net Position of the Utility Fund at the end of the year amounted to $2,857,208. Net Position decreased
in 2016 by $90,710. This decrease is attributable to increase cost of sewer treatment.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights.
The main components of the difference between the original budget and fmal amended budget can be briefly
summarized as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

$ I 05,809 increase in sales tax due one time receipt of a sales tax payment
$ 30,800 increase in licenses and permits due to increase building permits and developments
$ 168, 106 decrease in public safety expenditures due to vacancy in personnel
$65,553 decrease in general government expenditures due to vacancy in personnel
$109,420 increase in public works for additional street maintenance and repairs.

CAPITAL ASSETS
The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 20 16
amounts to $14,371,902 and $ 15,805,067, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure.
The City had total governmental activity capital asset additions of $ 1,239,680 to include:
• $229,643 in Police Department additions including five police vehicles totaling $213,368 and other
miscellaneous equipment totaling $16,275.
• $124,362 in Fire Department additions including a fire vehicle for $3 7,397; a back-up generator $28,530;
radios for $ 10,056; $15,714 in building remodeling; and other miscellaneous equipment of$32,665.
•
Animal control storage building for $8,500.
• New court software of$64,517.
• $ 100,355 in general government additions including a vehicle of$29,2 14; building remodel of$21,958; a
City Hall camera upgrade up $9,255; computer and sever upgrades of$36,025, and other miscellaneous
equipment of $3,903.
• $294,988 in public works additions including various bridge road improvements for $146,599; a truck for
$2 1,798; a skid loader for $26,005; a skid loader for $ 15,980; a land acquisition for $80,268; and other
miscellaneous equipment totaling $4,338.
• $396,024 in construction in progress on Main Street Cormector Project.
The City had total business-type activity additions of $995, 198 including $522,086 in construction in progress for
various projects and $473,112 in equipment.
7

Capital Assets nt Year-End
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Total

Governmental Activities
2016
1,237,991
s
396,024
2,946,5 19
95, 152
2, 159,679
7,536,537
s 14,37 1,902 s

s

2015
1,157,723
3,095,288
110, 176
2,344,088
7,681,006
14,388,281

Business-Type Activities
2016
2015
s 1,130,984 s 1,130,984
456,562
47,978
24,111
23,872
13,475,352
14,594,313
718,058
184,521

s

15,805,067

$

15,98 1,668

s

s

Total
2016
2,368,975
s
852,586
2,970,630
13,570,504
2,877,737
7,536,537
30, 176,969 s

2015
2,288,707
47,978
3,1 19, 160
14,70-l,489
2,528,609
7,681,006
30,369,949

Additional information on the City of Red Oak capital assets can be found in note 4 on pages 32-33 of this report.
DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total bonded debt and note payable of $33,148,030. The full
amount of bonded debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the government.
Outstanding Debt at Year End
Bonds, Note and Contract Payable

Certificates of obligation
General obligations
Revenue bonds
Tax notes
Premium on bonds
Capital Leases
Note Payable
Total

s

s

Governmental Activities
2016
20 15
3,493,000 s
2,770,000
4,415,000
4,580,000
3,931,000
663,000
934,000
1,17 1,000
184,664
197,856
96,752
170, 124
1,431,040
1,532,901
14,485,456 s 11,084,881

Business-Type Activities
20 16
2015
16,245,000 s
1,982,000
16,740,000

s

301,000
93,84 1
40,733

s

18,662,574

s

380,000
103,63 1
72,504

s

17,296,135

s

Total
2016
19,738,000 $
6,397,000
3,93 1,000
1,235,000
278,505
137,485
1,43 1,040
33, 148,030 s

2015
2,770,000
21,320,000
663,000
1,55 1,000
301,487
242,628
1,532,901
28,381,016

The City's General Obligation and Tax and Water Works and Sewer System Certificates of Obligation ratings are
listed below.

Standard's & Poor's
Insured
Underlying
Certificates of Obligation
Series 2010
Series 2013
General Obligation Bonds
Series 2007
Series 2010
Series 2013

AAAA-

AAAA-

AAAAAA

AAAAAA-

Fitch
Insured
Underlying
AA

AA

N/A

N/A

AA
AA

AA
AA

NIA

N/A

Series 20 14 General Obligation refunding bond, Series 2015 Combination Tax & Revenue Certificate of Obligation,
Series 20 16 Combination Tax & Revenue Certificate of Obligation was not insured as the City Rating is a AA and
greater than or equal to insurance agency.
Additional information on the City of Red Oak long term-debt can be found in note 4 on pages 34-40 of this report.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES
The information presented in this year's budget was intended to give the City a clear fmancial picture of the City of
Red Oak recent history, current status and financial plan for moving forward into the next year. With the help of
directors and staff, we are proud to present a balanced budget. The budget does not require a change to the tax rate
and continues to provide the same service to the citizens. All funds are balanced with revenues meeting
expenditures. Revenue estimates and expenses are conservative and consistent with established policies. This budget
sets a foundation for prudent fiscal management of City operations for the coming years and ensures that the City
will have the tools to achieve the City Council's goals.
ECONOM IC COND ITIONS AI'ID O UTLOOK

Retail and Commercial: Red Oak continues to attract high quality retail and commercial developments. The Red
Oak Plaza, a new retail development to be located on approximately 5.7 acres in vicinity of Walrnart that features
over 16,400 square feet of space including a Chick-fil-A. Prosperity Bank of Red Oak, located immediately adjacent
to the Red Oak Plaza, plans to demolish its existing building and rebuild a new bank on the existing site. A short
drive to the east from Red Oak Plaza and Prosperity Bank of Red Oak, Arby's Restaurant is constructing a new
building immediately adjacent to The Wall Chinese Restaurant. In keeping with its primary goal, the Red Oak
Economic Development Corporation (ROEDC) leveraged local sales tax revenues to fund the realignment of
Hickory Creek Drive so it directly connects with Burney Lane at its intersection with FM 664/0villa Road. This
roadway realignment allowed TXDOT to install a traffic signal to improve safety for the residents of the Coyote
Ridge and Hickory Creek subdivisions. The realignment of Hickory Creek Drive creates additional sites along FM
664/0villa Road for future retail commercial developments. Across FM 664/0villa Road from the Hickory Creek
Drive realignment project, Dollar Tree has expanded into existing space in the Ovilla Road Plaza adjacent to the Life
School Administrative Offices. Palio's Pizza and the Red Oak Nail Bar join WingStop, and Sprint the most recent
tenants for the Red Oak Crossing retail center located in the vicinity of Walmart. Along FM 664/\V. Ovilla Road to
west ofi-35E, the newly constructed 3, 150 SF Johnson Square retail center, is home for three new businesses: RJ's
Barbecue; Sno-to-Go; and, Quick Time Fitness. The Driggers and Decker Family Funeral Home, currently under
construction located adjacent to lnterfirst Bank will meet a previously unfulfilled need for funeral services in Red
Oak.
Residential Development Strategically located within the Dallas-Fort Worth Motorplex, Red Oak is preferred
residential location for individuals and families. To this end, a study by New York Financial Technology Company
("SmartAsset") ranked Red Oak number two nationally, and number one in the state of Texas in "Ease of Sale"
which is based upon the average number of days a home is on the market. This same SmartAsset study ranked Red
Oak number eight in the state of Texas in "Healthiest Housing Markets" which measures market health by the
average number of years residents spend in homes, home values, ease of sale, and costs associated with ownership.
Multiple new residential developments within the Red Oak totaling approximately 1,750 new residences will be
constructed over the next few years. These new residential developments include Camden Estates, CIVITAS Senior
Living Center (260 units), Crosswick Residential (531 lots), Hickory Creek Estates (276 lots), and the Woods of Red
Oak (2 17 lots). These developments will include single family units, senior living units, and some will include parks
that serve the individual developments. To facilitate many of these planned residential developments, two separate
public-private partnerships are in process involving the construction of regional sanitary sewer systems.
ECONOM IC ACHIEVEMENTS

Wal-Mart Supercenter. In May of 2012, Wai-Mart opened a supercenter that increased the retail market by more
than 50% and created additional pad sites for future development. The store employs 310 managers, customer
service personnel and laborers. With the completion of the supercenter, other retail markets are beginning to build.
Triumph Aerostructues, LLC ("Triu mph"). Since Triumph's one million square foot manufacturing facility
opened in 20 12, the sales tax increase is a direct result of Triumph's creation of more than 1,200 new primary jobs
with average wages exceeding $80,000. During the past year, Triumph has leased an existing office building to
provide space for additional personnel which will positively in1pact Triumph's economic impact on the community
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Industrial Pr oper ty. A primary objective for the Red Oak Industrial Development Corporation (ROIDC) is to assist
in the creation of primary jobs which raise the community's overall standard of living and boost local income. To
this end, during the year 2016, the ROIDC purchased over 300 acres of property to strategically position Red Oak
for attracting industrial projects which create primary j obs.
Texas State Tech nical College- North Texas ("TSTC North Texas"). In August of 2014, TSTC North Texas
campus opened a $10 mi llion, 102,000 square foot Industrial Technology Center which serves Ellis County and the
Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex. During the past year, TSTC North Texas fl.ll.ished out 17,000 square feet located on
the second floor of this facility to facilitate its welding program and provide additional space fo r offices and
classrooms.
BUI LDING FOR TH E FUT URE

The City of Red Oak is creating a solid foundation for the future. The foundation is one that is driven by the
community needs and council vision of the future. The first step is to identify the goals that can guide policy makers
and decision makers over the long-term. The City Council has identified critical goals to establish that foundation
through decisions and the Strategic Planning process. The Strategic Planning Goals are outlined below.
•
•
•
•
•
•

Enhance and Maintain Public Safety
Enhance the Quality of life through Parks and other projects
Improve the City's Infrastmcture
Enhance Economic Development
Develop, Retain and Attract Quality Staff
Improve long-term Financial Sustainability

These goals are the Foundation fo r the Fiscal Year 2016/17 B udget. These goals serve as a guide to future budgets
and a new era of economic stability. How we spend our money today will impact future citizens of Red Oak. The
Fiscal Year 2017 budget is based on the current rate, maintains total City operating costs, and addresses some of
priorities identified in the strategic planning workshop. In most cases expenditures cover specifically identified costs.
The City of Red Oak has maintained the same tax rate of .6490 for 8 years. Prior to that, the City maintained a rate
of .6350. The City has a ftrm commitment to provide exceptional service with minimal increase to the tax rate. The
portion of the tax rate contributed to debt service is 16. 13%.
The City updated the master plans to guide the City's long-term growth and financial planning. Significant master
planning activity includes: 1) Comprehensive land use and thoroughfare plan, 2) Parks master plan, and 3) a
Strategic Plan. Utilizing these plans, the City annually updates a fi ve-year capital improvement plan. The City also
maintains a police and ftre department stafftng plan as part of the strategic plan. These plans were used to determine
budget allocations to the various departments and activities of the City.
Distin guished Budget Award
The City submitted its Annual Budget to the Government Finance Officer Association for two consecutive years and
has received the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for October 1, 20 14 and October 1, 20 15. This award is
valid for one year only and the City has submitted the Annual Budget for the ftscal year beginning October 1, 2016
and p lans to continue to submit for the award in future years. This represents a great improvement in budget
management within the City.
Bond Ratings. The City's bond ratings provide evidence o f its fmancial strength. In November 2016, the City
received a rating of "AA" from "A+" by Fitch Ratings. This indicated excellent investment quality. The rating
agencies commented by giving an underlying rating of "aaa" on revenue framework and operating performance.
They also conunented that the rating was reflec tive of the City's strong reserve position, strong budgeting practices
and moderate liability burden.
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RESERVES

Operating Reserves. Another measure of the City's fmancial strength is the level of its fund balance, or operating
reserves. Operating reserves are maintained by organizations to ensure services can be delivered during economic
downttm1s, to address unforeseen expenditures in the case of an emergency or other event, and to take advantage of
opportunities that may materialize outside of the budget processes. It is important to maintain operating cash reserves
so that service delivery will not be negatively impacted if economy takes a downturn as 52% of the City's revenue is
generated by sales taxes and property taxes. It is the policy guidelines adopted by the Council to the reserve fund
balanced be maintained at 30 days operating expenditures. For the Fiscal year 20 16 and 20 17 the City exceeds the
policy.
Development Corpor ation Reserves. Operating reserves are maintained by the development corporations at 25%
of sales tax revenue for the year. As sales tax is the only revenue source for the development corporations 25% of
revenue is held in reserve as contingency amount should economic downturn occur. For the Fiscal year 20 16 and
20 17 the Corporations have exceeded policy.
Capital Projects
The objective of the 2017 budget was to maintain the same tax rate while improving overall service to citizens and
replacing much needed equipment. Debt was authorized for the current year to purchase new communication
equipment and ftre truck. The General Fund includes cash projects of $458,000 for replacement of 3 new patrol
vehicles, various public works equipment and vehicles and $320,000 for street repair and replacements. The current
Utility Fund budget includes capital proj ects for the current year of $979,000. The capital projects includes water
master plan, wastewater master plan, CIP plan, and various line replacements. Other equipment replacements of
$477,000 include 10 generators and various equipment and vehicles.
Ci ty Employees
Staffing levels for FY 2017 will increase by 2 positions from the previous fiscal year. The City currently supports 95
full-time and 2 part-time po~itions.
Salary Adjustments
We believe it is important to be able to recruit and retain valuable staff by ensuring competitive compensation rates.
Uniformed employees will receive step increases and other staff will receive an armual 3% increase on April 151
contingent upon perfom1ance review. In addition the Police and Fire step plans have been updated to include a 3%
escalation and an increase to starting pay. This revision will allow the City to keep and recruit trained police officers
and ftrefighters.
Benefits
Health insurance rates for employees and City did not change. The City provides pension benefits for all of its
eligible employees through TMRS. Contribution rates increased to the City from 5.26% to 5.94%. The employee
participant rate is 6%.

REQUEST FOR INFOR.lVIATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's fmances for all those with an interest in
the government's fmances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional fmancial information should be addressed to the Office of the City Secretary, P .O. Box 393, Red Oak,
Texas 75154.
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CITY OF RED OAK. TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30.2016

Govenunent:U
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash

6.429..132
936.708

Investments
Restricted assets:

Cash
lnvcsunents
Receivables. net of allowance for uncollectible
ln1erfund accounts
lm'entory
Prepaid items
Land held for resale

725.21 7
76,000
916,935
23,27~

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable. net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

975.241
181.434

7.404.773

1.321.055
100
871.592
(23.274)

2,046.272
76,100
1.788.527

8.38~

8,038
84,375
6.508.427

166.373

15.708,506

3.500.905

1.1 1 8, 1 ~2

16.422
250.7~8

6.508.427
19,209,411

1 ,63~.015

1,178,692

2,812,707

12.737.887

1~.626.375

27.36~.262

l U71.902

15.805.067

30.176.969

30.080.408

19.305.972

49.386.380

DEFERRED OUfFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow -pension conrnbutions

19~.321

307,366

10.227
16.177

204.5~8

Deferred outflow - pension investment

Deferred outflow - difference between expected
and actual pension experience
Deferred oulflow -difference in 3.SSUmptions
Deferred charge for refunding

16,621
197,130

875
10.375
706.793

17,496
207,505

3~.603

Tot3.1 outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows

323,5~3

7~1.396

750.04 1

74~.4~7

1.494.488

30.830.4~9

20.050.419

50.880.868

852.779
793.192
31.508
106.028

203,645
694 ,790
28,428

LIAB ILITIES AND NET POS!TION
Accounts payable
Bonds payable. current
Capital lease pay.1ble, current
Notes payable. current
Customer deposits payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Une1med revenue

1.056.42~

1,487.982
59,936
106.028
265,810

45,150
522.455

265,810
70.295
18.460

2.351.112

1,281,428

3,632.5~0

12,164,472
1,325,012

l7,927,Q5l

30,091,523
1,325.012

65.2~4

998.480

12,305
52,551
30.000

1,051,031
30.000

Total noncurrent liabilities

14.553.208

18.021.907

32.575.115

Total liabilities

16.904.320

19.303.335

36.207.655

16.9~.320

19.303,335

36.207.655

(2.110.12~)

(2 .17 1.517)

97,12 1
405.299
890.230

2.857.208

59.563
175,606
8.315.421
4.044 ,282
97,121
405.299
3.747.438

Total net position

13.9 26.129

7~7.08~

lH73.213

Tout liabilities and net position

30.830.4~9

20,050.419

50.880.868

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liab ilities:
Oonds payable, less current ponion
No res payable. less current ponion
Capitalle:lSe payable, less current ponion
Net pension liability
Developer deposits payable

115.4~5

540,915

77.5~9

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow ·difference between expected
and actual pension t.'tperience
Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Public safety
Cultural and recreaction
lndustrial development
Economic development
Debt service
Capital projects
Unrestricted

(61,393)
59.563
175.606
8,315.421
4.~~.282

The notes to the financial statements arc an intcrgral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
I'OR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2016

Program Revenues

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Charges for
Services

Expenses

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

Governmental
Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Business
Activities

Total

f.unction/Pro!,'TIIIll Activities
Primary government:

Governmental ac ti vi ti es:

General government
Public sa fe ty
Cultural and recreational
Public works
lndusllial development
Economic development
Interest on long-tern1 government

$

Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Utility
Total business-type activities:
Total p1imary government

$

I ,588,33 1 $
6,78 1,475
367,427
1,60 1,788
63,339
188,748
328,730

$

32,446 $
575,865

469,496
383,63 1
490,104

$

(I ,555,885) $

$

(5,736, 114)
16,204
(1 , 111 ,684)
(63,339)
(1 88,748)
(328,730)

( I ,555,885)
(5,736, 114)
16,204
(1 , 111 ,684)
(63,339)
(188,748)
(328,730)

(8,968,296)

(8,968,296)

10,9 19,838

I ,343,23 1

6,461 ,674

6,369,552

(92,122)

(92,122)

6.46 1,674

6,369.552

(92,122)

(92,122)

(92, 122)

(9,060,4 18)

17,38 1,512 $

7,7 12,783

608,3 11

s

(8,968,296)

608,3 11 $

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
f-ranchise tax
Hotel occupancy tax
1\lcoholic beverage tax

4,722,883
3,897,973
759,708
165, 188
12,501
t 17,567
1, 14 8, 148
166,420

Investment earnings

Sale of land
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues

10,990,388

Change in net position

2,022,092

Net position - beginning (as restated)
Net position- ending

$

The notes to the onancial statements are an intergral part of these financial statements.
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1,412

1,4 12
(90,71 0)

4,722,883
3,897,973
759,708
165, 188
12,50 1
11 8,979
1,148, 148
166,420

10,991,800
I ,931,382

11,904,037

837,794

12,741,831

13,926,129 $

747,084 $

14,673,213

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
BALANCE S I-I EET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,20 16

Industrial
Development
Co!Eoration

General
Fund
ASSETS
Cash-operating
Cash-restricted
Investments-operating
Investments-restricted
Receivables-net of allowance
for uncollectible
Due to other funds
Prepaid items
Inventory
Land held for resale

s

I ,359,226
29,456
818,588

s

509,057
434
84,375
8,038

3, 159,79 1
695,76 1
54,970
76,000

O ther
Governmental
Funds

Economic
Development
Corporation

s

I ,474,656 $

435 ,859

30,000

33, 150

157,436
11,59 1

234,5 13
11 ,249

15,929

4,160,65 1

2,347,776

Total
Governmental
Funds

s

6,429,532
725,2 17
936,708
76,000
916,93 5
23,274
84,375
8,038
6,508,427

Total assets

s

2,809,174

s

8,3 16,200

s

4,098,194

s

484 ,938

s

15,708,506

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

s

783, 196
341

s

779

s

53,912

s

14,551

s

852,438
34 1

Total liabilities

14,55 1

852,779

74,669

11 , 186

85,855

74,669

11 , 186

85,855

783 ,537

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue- Property taxes
Total inflows of resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Inventory
Prepaid items
Land held for resale
Restricted:
Retirement of long-tenn debt
Capital projects
Co•nmined:
Court securi ty
Court technology
Other public safety
Cultural and recreaction
Industrial development
Economic development
Unassigned

8,038
84,375

8,038
84,375
6,508,427

2,347,776

4, 160,65 1

2 18,825

97,121
186,474

97,12 1
405,299

175,606

13,885
923
44,755
175,606
4, 154,770
1,696,506
I ,580,167

459,201

14,769,872

13,885
923
44,755
4,154,770
1,696,506
1,580, 167
8,3 15,421

I ,950,968

Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fun d balances

53,9 12

779

s

2,809, 174

s

8,3 16,200

4 ,044,282

s

4,098, 194

s

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral pan of these financial statements.
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484,938

s

15,708,506

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30,2016

$

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not repmied in governmental funds. At the end of the
year, the cost of these assets was $26,020,543 and the accumulated
depreciation was $ 11,648,641.

14,37 1,902

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, that are not due and
payable in the current period, and, therefore are not reporied as
liabilities in the funds.

( 14,973,308)

Interest accrued on outstanding debt in the government-wide frnancial
statements, whereas in the fund frnancial statements, interest
expenditures are reported when due.

(45, 150)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore, are deferred in the goverru11ental funds .

85,855

Included in the goverrunent-wide financials is the City's proporiionate
share of the TMRS net pension liability in the amount of $998,480, less
deferred resource outflows of $7 15,438.
Net Position of Goverrunental Activities

(283,042)
$

The notes to the fi nancial s tatements are an intergr·aJ part of these frnancial statements.
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14,769,872

13,926, 129

CITY OF RED O AK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20 16

Industrial
Development

General
Fund
Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise tax
Hotel occupancy tax
Alcoholic beverage tax
Licenses and penni ts
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for seiVice - sanitation
Revenues from use of money and property
Other
lntergoverrunental

s

s
964,767

s

Total
Governmental
Funds

759,65 1 $

4,7 18,288
3,897,973
759,708
165, 188
12,50 1
383,631
469,496
490, 104
11 7,567
167,734
608,311

964,767
165, 188

12,50 1
343,047
469,496
490, 104
35, 106
140,378
608,3 11

Total revenues

40,584

8,785,727

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Cultural and recreational
Public works
lndustrial development
Economic development
Capital outlay:
General govenm1ent
Public safety
Public works
Debt seiVice:
Principal retirement
lnterest and fi scal charges

12,6 17
2,533

5,520
999

64,324
23,824

979,9 17

971,286

1,053,57 1

1, 165,085
6,044,534
225 ,690
1,240,448

11,790,50 1

1,165,085
6,044,534
342,409
1,240,448
59,489
58 1,446

116,7 19
59,489
58 1,446

186,528
390,733
326,607

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

77,000
19,5 10

101 ,86 1
57,208

462,000
299,387

706,007
401,682

9,670,348

155,999

740,5 15

911 ,542

II ,478,404

823,9 18

230,771

142,029

3 12,097

(1 78,250)

(55,500)

1, 148, 148
4,208,000
402,540
(402,540)

(55,500)

5,3 56, 148

1, 148,148
3,639,000

569,000
402,540

( 168,790)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

s

33,436

186,528
390,733
360,043

65, 146
25,577

(884,62 1)

Other fmanc ing sources (uses)
Sale of real property
Issuance of bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Fund balances at end of year

Co~orat ion

3,958,637 $
1,968,439
759,708

Other
Governmental
Funds

Economic
Development
Corporation

97 1,540

4,6 18 ,358

( 178,250)

86,91 9

5,442,276

52,52 1

86,529

5,668,245

1,864,049

2,873, 145

3,99 1,76 1

372,672

9, 10 1,627

1,950,968

s

8,3 15,42 1

s

4,044,282

s

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of these fi nanc ial statements.
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459,201

s

14,769,872

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

$

Tota l net change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the fund financial statements,
but they should be shown as increases in capital assets in the government-wide
financial statements. The net effect of removing the current year capital outlays
is to increase net position.

5,668,245

1,239,680

Depreciation is not recognized as an e xpense in governmental funds since it
does not require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the
cuiTent year's depreciation is to decrease net position.

(1 ,254,745)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, loans, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal
of long-term debt consumes the current fmancial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on the net position.

(3,413 ,767)

Govenunental funds repo1t the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and
s imilar items when debt is first issued, whereas, these amounts are defen·ed and
a mortized in the statement of acti vities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

9,982

Revenues and expenditures in the statement of activities that do not provide or
use current financial resources are not reported as revenues and expenses in the
governmental funds.

(100,195)

GASB 68 and 7 1 requires that certain expenditures be de-expensed and recorded
as defe1Ted resource inflows. Contlibutions made after the measurement date
combined with the net share of the City's amount of deferred inflows and
outflows of resources increased the change in the ending net position.

(127,108)

$

Total change in net pos ition of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of these financ ial statements.
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2,022,092

CITY OF RED OAK. TEXAS
STATEi\<IEl\'T OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTE~ffiER 30.2016

Business-type
Activities. Eoterprisc
(Utility) Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:

s

Cash
lnvcstmcots

Restricted assets:
Cash

975.241
181,434
1,32 1,055
100
871,592
8,384
166.373

lnvestmems
Receivables · net of allowance for uncollectible
l_nventory

Prepaids

3.524. 179

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of depreciation

15.805.067

Total noncurrent assets

15.805.067

Total Assets

19.329.246

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow- pension contributions
Deferred outflow- pension investment
Deferred outflow- difference between e:<pected

10.227
16,177

and actual pension e:tpcricncc
Deferred outflow- difference in assumptions
Deferred charge for refunding

875
10.375
706.793

Total deferred outflows of resources

744.447

Total assets and deferred outnows

20.073.693

LIABIUTIES AND NET POSITION
Current Liabilities payable from unrestricted assets:

s

Accounts payable
Bonds payable. current
Capi1al lease payable, current

Customer deposits payable
Accrued interest payable

Compensated absences
Due to other funds

203.645
694.790
28,428
265.8 10
70,295
18.460
23.274

1.3().1.702

Total current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets
Current liabilities payable from restricted asse1s:
Accrued interest payable

Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets

1.3().1.702

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable, less current portion
Capital lease payable, less current portion
Net pension liability
Developer deposits payable

17,927.05 1
12.305
52,55 1
30.000

Total noncurrent liabilities

18.021.907

Total liabilities

19.326,609

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow· difference bclwcen expected and actual pension C:."(pcricnce
Total deferred inflows of resources

19.326.609

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

(2.110.124)
2.857.208
747.084

Total net position

s ===,;;2,;;
0·,;,07,;;3;,;.6,;;93=

Total liabilities and net position

The notes to the financial statemems 3re an intergral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF RED OAK. TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Business· type
Activities· Enterprise
(Utility) Fund

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Investments

s

975.241
181.434

Restricted assets:

Cash
Investments
Receivables- net of allowance for uncollectible

1.321.055
100
87 1.592
8,384
166.373

Inventory

Prepaids

3,524,179

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of depreciation

15.805.067

Total noncurrent assets

15.805.067

Total Assets

19.329.246

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow - pension contnDutions
Deferred outOow -pension investment
Deferred outflow - difference between expected
and actual pension experience
Deferred outflow- difference in assumptions
Deferred charge for refunding

875
10.375
706.793

Total deferred outflows of resources

744.447

10.227
16,177

20.073.693

Total assets and deferred outflows

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets:

s

Accounts payable

Bonds payable, current
Capital lease payable. current
Customer deposits payable
Accrued interest payable

Compensated absences
Due to other funds
Total current ~abilities payable from unrestricted assets

203,645
694.790
28.428
265.810
70,295
18.460
23.274
1.304.702

Current fubilities payable from restricted assets:
Accrued interest payable

Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets

1.304.702

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable, less current ponion
Capital lease payable, less current port ion
Net pension liability
Developer deposits payable

17,927.051
12.305
52.55 1
30.000
18.021.907

Total noncurrent liabilities

19,326,609

Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow· difference between expected and actua1 pension e;~periencc
Total deferred inOows of resources

Total fubilities and deferred inflows

19.326.609

NET POSITION
Net in,·estment in capital assets
Unrestricted

(2,110.124)
2.857.208
747,084

Total net position

20.073.693

Total liabilities and net position

The notes to the fmancinl statements are an intergral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Business-type
Activities - Enterprise
(U tility) Fund
Operating revenues:
Charges for services -water
Charges for services - sewer
Tap fees and reconnects
Penalties
Miscellaneous

$

2,5 13,915
3, 128,500
120,040
159,858
447,239
6,369,552

Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Personnel
Insurance
Supplies
Contractual services
Maintenance
Other
Depreciation

679,805
124,795
144,206
3,301,964
232,987
95,336
1,171 ,799
5,750,892

Total expenses

618,660

Operating income
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest on investments
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance costs

1,4 12
(684,745)
(26,037)

Total nonoperating expenses

(709,370)

Loss before transfers

(90,710)

Transfers out
Change in net position

(90,7 10)

Net position at beginning of year (as restated)

837,794
$

Net position at end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of these financial statements.
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747,084

=======

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUN D
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2016

Business-type
Activities- Enterprise
(Utility) Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Other operating expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

6,162,730
(3,112,030)
(679,805)
(597,324)
1,773,571

Cash fl ows from noncapital financing activities:
Trans fers to other funds
Net cash used in noncapital fin ancing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of refunding bonds and tax notes
Principal paid on bond maturities and refunding, net
Interest and fiscal charges paid on bond maturities
Principal paid on capital leases
Net cash provided by capital and related finan cing activities

1,982,000
(574,000)
(668,276)
(31 ,77 1)
707,953

Cash fl ows from investing activities:
Purch ase of equipment
Interest on investments
Net cash used by investing activities

(995, 198)
1,412
(993,786)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,487,738

Cash and cash equi valents at beginning of year

990,092

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Increase in accounts receivable
Decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in customer deposits
Net cash provided by operating activities
Noncash in vesting, capital and finan cing activities:
Contributions of capital assets from developers

$

2,477,830

$

618,660

1, 171 ,799
(21 0,8 15)
78,203
111,731
3,993

$ =============1,7~7~3~
, 5~
71~

$

$================

Capital assets constructed on account

The notes to the finan cial statements are an intergral part of these financ ial s tatements.
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE I -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A.

Reporting entity

The City of Red Oak, Texas (the "City'') was incorporated in 1949, and operates under a Council-Manager form of
government. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable.

Blended Component Units. Following are descriptions o f legally separate component units fo r which the City is
fmancially accountable that are blended with the City.
The Red Oak Economic Development Corporation, Inc. (Economic Development Corporation) is responsible for
collecting and disbursing the one-fourth percent sales tax to be used for economic development within and for the
benefit of the City. The City Council is the governing board for the Corporation. The members of the Corporation's
board act as an advisory board and are appointed by the City. The City holds operational responsibility for the
Corporation. The Corporation is presented as a governmental fund type and has a September 30 year-end.
The Red Oak Industrial Development Corporation, Inc. (Industrial Development Corporation) is responsible for
collecting and disbursing the one-fourth percent sales tax to be used for economic development within and for the
benefit of the City. The City Council is the governing board for the Corporation. The members of the Corporation's
board act as an advisory board and are appointed by the City. The City holds operational responsibility for the
Corporation. The Corporation is presented as a governmental fund type and has a September 30 year-end.
Separate fmancial statements for the component units are not issued.
B. Implementation of New Accounting Principles
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Comparability of financial statements among
governments will be enhanced by this Statement by requiring measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair
value using a consistent and more detailed defmition or fai r value and accepted valuation techniques. This Statement
will also enhance disclosures about the impac t of fair value measurements on a government's financial position. This
statement became effective for the City in fiscal year 2016 and was implemented in this financial report.
GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within
the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. This
Statement establishes requirements for defmed benefit pensions that arc not within the scope of Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as well as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing
those pensions. In addition, it establishes requirements for defmed contribution pensions that are not "within the
scope of Statement No. 68. It also amends certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension
Plans, and Statement No. 68 for pension plans and pensions that are within their respective scopes. This statement
became effective for the City in fiscal year 2016 and was implemented in this fmancial report.
GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments. This Statement updates the hierarchy and sources of accounting principles used to prepare frnancial
statements of state and local governmental entities. It will allow for broader public input on implementation
guidance, help with selection of accounting treatments, and allow for less variation, which in tum should enhance
comparability offmancial statement information among governments. This statement became effective for the City in
fiscal year 2016 and was implemented in this frnancial report.
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The City is currently analyzing the impact of implementing the following statements on future financial statements of
the City as these statements are not yet effective.
GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans. This
Statement replaces Statements No. 43. Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension
Plans, as amended, and Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer
Plans. It also includes requirements for defmed contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements tor those
OPBB plans in Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plum and Note Disclosures for
Defined Contribution Plans, as amended. Statement No. 43, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures. GASB
Statement No. 74 establishes new accounting and fmancial reporting requirements for governments whose employees
are provided with OPEB, as well as for certain non-employer governments that have a legal obligation to provide
fmancial support tor OPEB provided to the employees or other entities. This statement will become effective for the
City in fiscal year 20 17. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its fmancial position, results of operations or
cash flows upon adoption.
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.
This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45. Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent
Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, fo r OPEB. This statement addresses accounting and fmancial
reporting for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers. This statement will
become effective for the City in fiscal year 20 18. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its fma ncial
position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.
GASH Statement No. 77, .Tax Abatement Disclosures. Requirements of this Statement will make the nature and
magnitude of tax abatements more consistently and comprehensively reported. Tbc effects on tax. revenues of a
government will be disclosed, both from its own tax abatement agreements and those entered into by other
governments. This statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 20 17. The City is evaluating the impact,
if any, upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.
GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans.
Tlus Statement amends the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68 to exclude certain pensions provided to
employees of state o r local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple employer defmed benefit
pension plan. This statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2017. Management has determined that
tills statement has no effect on the City's fmancial statements as the City does not participate in a cost-sharing
multiple-employer pension plan.
GASB Statement No.79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. This Statement permits
qualifying external investment pools to measure pool investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes
and establishes additional note disclosure requirements for qualifying pools and for governments that participate in
those pools. This statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2017. The City is evaluating the impact,
if any, upon its fmancial position, results of operations or cash flo ws upon adoption.
GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units-an amendment of GASB Statement
No.l4. This statement will enhance the comparability of financial statements among governments. The requirements
of this statement are effective fo r financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 20 16. The City is
evaluating the impact, if any, upon its fmancial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 20 16

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements This statement will enhance the comparability of
fmancial statements by providing accounting and financial reporting guidance for irrevocable split-interest
agreements in which a government is a beneficiary. The requirements of this statement are effective for fmancial
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its
fmancial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.
GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues. This statement will improve fmancial reporting by enhancing consistency
in the application of fmancial reporting requirements to certain pension issues. The requirements of this statement
are effective for fmanc ial statements for periods beginning after June 15,2016. The City is evaluating the impact, if
any, upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.
C.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide fmancial statements (i.e., the statement of Net Position and the statement of changes in Net
Position) report information on all of the primary government and its blended component units. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Separate fmancial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund fmancial
statement
D. Measurement focus. basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation
The government-wide fmanc ial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund fmancial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fu nd fmancial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, inventories of materials and supplies are considered
expenditures when used and debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to accumulated unpaid sick
pay, are recorded only when payment is due.
Property and taxpayer-assessed taxes estimated to be collectible within sixty days after balance sheet date, interest,
and expenditure driven grants are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash is received by the government.

23

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all fmancial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The Industrial Development Corporation fund is responsible for collecting and disbursing the one-fourth cent
sales tax to be used for industrial development within the City.
The Economic Development Corporation fund is responsible for collecting and disbursing the one-fourth cent
sales tax to be used for economic development within the City.
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:
The Utility fund accounts for the activities of the sewage treatment plant, sewage pumping stations and
collection systems, and the water distribution system.
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's utility function and various other functions of the City.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund 's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the utility fund are charges to
customers for sales and services and the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers
to the system. Operating expenses for the utility fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this deftnition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted
resources fust, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.
E.

Assets, liabilities. and Net Position or equity

Deposits and Investments The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
The Economic Development Corporation and Industrial Development Corporation are authorized by their governing
boards to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and the state treasurer's investment pool.
Investments for the City, as well as the Economic Development Corporation and Industrial Development
Corporation, are reported at fair value.
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continyed)
Receivables and payablesActivity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of inter-fund loans) or "advances
to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of inter-fund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds
are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities
and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide fLnancial statements as "internal balances."
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund fmancial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable
available financial resources.
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivables
in excess of sixty days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles. The property tax
receivable allowance is equal to .2 percent of outstanding property taxes at September 30, 2016.
The City's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and
personal property. Appraised values are established by the Ellis Central Appraisal District as market value and
assessed at I 00% of appraised value. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The
Ellis County Tax Assessor/Collector bills and collects the City's property taxes, which are due October 1. Full
payment can be made prior to the next January 31 to avoid penalty and interest charges. Over time, substantially all
property taxes are collected.
Inventory and prepaid items All inventories are valued at cost using the frrst-in/frrst-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of goverrm1ental funds are
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund fmancial statements.
Restricted assets Certain proceeds of the City's enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of Net Position because they are maintained in separate
bank accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The "revenue bond construction" account is
used to report those proceeds of bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. The "interest and sinking"
account is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twe lve months.
Capital assetsCapital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs and
gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide fmancial statements. Capital assets are defmed by the City
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $ 1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets
are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives
are not capitalized.

25

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Major outlays fo r capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constmcted. Interest incurred
during the constmction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value
o f the assets constmcted, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. The total interest
expense incurred by the utility fund during the current fiscal year was $684,745. Of this amount, $0 was included as
part of the cost of capital assets under constmction.
Property, plant, equipment and infrastmcture are depreciated usmg the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
Years
10-30
10-50
5-15
10-40

Assets
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastmcture
Compensated absences-

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation pay benefits. All
vacation pay is accmed when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund fmancial statements. A liability
for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations and retirements. Vacation leave shall be taken during the year following its accumulation.

Long-tenn obligations In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund fmancial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, businesstype activities, or proprietary fund type statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fu nd types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other f10ancing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financ ing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.
Fund Equity In the governmental fund financial statements the City has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions. The objective of the statement is to enhance the
usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more
consistently applied and by clarifying the existing government fund type defmitions. The statement establishes fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Fund balance
classifications, under GASB 54 are Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. These
classifications reflect not only the nature of funds, but also provide clarity to the level of restriction placed upon fund
balance. Fund balance can have different levels of constraint, such as external versus in ternal compliance
requirements. Unassigned fund balance is a residual classi fication within the General Fund. The General Fund should
be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned balance. In all other funds, unassigned is limi ted to negative
residual fund balance.
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NOTE l - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
In accordance with GASB 54, the City classifies governmental fund balances as follows:
Nonspendable -- includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form, or, for legal or
contractual reasons, must be kept intact. This classification includes prepaid items.
Restricted -- includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally imposed
by providers, such as creditors or amounts restricted due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Tltis
classification includes the child nutrition program, retirement of long term debt, construction programs and other
federal and state grants.
Comntitted -- includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed by
the City through formal action of the highest level of decision making authority. Cornntitted fund balance is reported
pursuant to resolution passed by the City Council. This classification includes campus activity funds, local special
revenue funds and potential litigation, claims and judgments.
Assigned -- includes fund balance amounts that are self-imposed by the City to be used for a particular purpose.
Fund balance can be assigned by the City Council, the City Manager, or the Finance Director. This classification
includes insurance deductibles, encumbrances, program start-up costs, projected budget deficit for subsequent years
and other legal uses.
Unassigned-- includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classified within
the other above mentioned categories. Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for any
governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for those specific purposes.
NOTE 2- RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement ofNet Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and Net Position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of Net Position.
One element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." The details of this difference are as
follows:

Bonds payable
Less: Deferred charge on issuance costs (to be amortized as interest expense)
Less: Issuance discotmt (to be amortized as interest expense)
Plus: Issuance premium (to be amortized as interest expense)
Note payable
Compensated absences
Capital lease payable
Net adjustments to reduce fi.md balance- total governmental
fi.mds to arrive at net position- governmental activities

27

$

(12,773,000)
34,603
1,113
(185,777)
(1,431,040)
(522,455)
(96,752)

$

(14,973,308)

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 20 16

NOTE 2 (continued)

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-\VIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balance- total governmental funds and changes in Net Position of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element explains that
"Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of
this difference are as follows:
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Net adjustments to increase net changes in fund balances total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities

$

1,239,680
( 1,254,745)

$

(15,065)

Another element of that reconciliation states that "the issuance of log-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current fmancial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect
on Net Position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and sinlilar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities." The details of tllis difference are as follows:
Debt issued or incurred:

$

General obligation refunding bonds
Principal repayments:
General obligation bonds
Certificates of Obligation

(4,208,000)
165,000
140,000
77,000
237,000
10 1,86 1
73,372

Revenue bonds
Ta.,x notes
Note payable
Capital lease payable
Net adjustments to increase net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of
governmental activities
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$

(3,413,767)
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NOTE 2 (continued)

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds." The details of this difference are as follows:
Amortization of bond discounts
Amortization of bond premium
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding
Net adjustments to decrease net changes in fund balances total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities

$

(77)
13,269
(3,210)

$

9,982

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTAB ILITY
A. Budgetarv information
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all governmental
funds. The annual budget for the utility fund is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level.
B.

Compliance with fmance related legal and contractual provisions

The City has no material violations of fmance related legal and contractual provisions.
NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and investments
Deposits- State statutes require that all deposits in fmancial institutions be fully collateralized by U.S. Government
obligations or obligations of Texas and its agencies that have a market value of not less than the principal amount of
the deposits. At year-end, the bank balance of the City was $4,508,769. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered
by federal depository insurance and the remaining was covered by collateral pledged in the City's name. The
collateral was held in the City's name by the safekeeping departments of the Federal Home Loan Bank, which acts as
the pledging banks' agent and had a fair value of approximately $7,042,713.
At year-end, the bank balance of the Industrial Development Corporation was $3,599,953, of the bank balance,
$250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining was covered by collateral pledged in the
Corporation's name. The collateral was held in the Corporation' s name by the safekeeping departments of the
Federal Home Loan Bank, which acts as the pledg ing banks' agent and had a fair value of approximately
$6,980,507.
At year-end, the bank balance of the Economic Development Corporation was $ 1,529,475, of the bank balance,
$250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining was covered by collateral pledged in the
Corporation's name. The collateral was held in the Corporation's name by the safekeeping departments of the
Federal Home Loan Bank, which acts as the pledging banks' agent and had a fair value of approximately
$ 1,329,584.
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
The City's investments carried at fair value as of September 30, 2016 are:
Weighted
O edit

Fair

Average Maturity

Rat in~

Value

(Years)

Investment Pool
TexPool

AAAm

TexSTAR

AAAm

$
$

194,320

0.13

999,922

0.12

1,194,242

0.12

Interest rate risk In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
limiting the weighted average of maturity not to exceed five years; structuring the investment portfolio so that
securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations; monitoring credit ratings of portfolio position to
assure compliance with rating requirements imposed by the Public Funds Investment Act; and invest operating
funds primarily in short-term securities or similar government investment pools.

Credit risk: The City's investment policy limits investments to obligations of the United States, State of Texas, or
their agencies and instrumentalities with an investment quality rating of not less than "A" or its equivalent, by a
nationally recognized investment rating fmn. Other obligations must be unconditionally guaranteed (either express or
implied) by the full faith and credit of the United States Government or the issuing U.S. agency and investment pools
w ith an investment quality not less than AAA or AAA-m, or equivalent, by at least one nationally recognized rating
service. As of September 30, 2016, the City's investment in investment pools were rated AAAm by Standard &
Poor's.
Custodial credit risk- deposits: In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's
deposits may not be returned to it. State statutes require that all deposits in financial institutions be insured or fully
collateralized by U.S. government obligations or its agencies and instrumentalities or direct obligations ofTexas or
its agencies and instrumentalities that have a market value of not less than the principal amount of the deposits. As of
September 30, 2016, the market values of pledged securities and FDIC insurance exceeded bank balances.
Custodial credit risk - investments: For an investment, tllis is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City's investment policy requires that it will seek to safekeeping securities at
frnancial institutions, avoiding physical possession. Further, all trades, where applicable, are executed by delivery
versus payment to ensure that securities are deposited in the City's safekeeping account prior to the release of funds.
TexPool was established as a trust company with the Treasurer of the State of Texas as trustee, segregated from all
other trustees, investments, and activities of the trust company. The State Comptroller of Public Accounts exercises
oversight responsibility over TexPool. Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence operations,
designation o f management, and accountability for fiscal matters. Additionally, the State Comptroller has established
an advisory board composed of both participants in TexPool and other persons who do not have a business
relationship with T exPool. The advisory board members review the investment policy and management fee structure.
Finally, Standard & Poor' s rate TexPool AAAm. As a requirement to maintain the rating, weekly portfolio
information must be submitted to Standard & Poor's, as well as to the office of the Comptroller of Public Accounts
for review.
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
TexSTAR has been established for governmental entities pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of
the Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code
and operates in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. TexSTAR's
governing body is a five-member Board consisting of three representatives of participants and one member
designated by each of the co-administrators. The Board holds legal title to all money, investments, and assets and has
the authority to employ personnel, contract for services, and engage in other administrative activities necessary or
convenient to accomplish the objectives of TexSTAR. Board oversight of TexSTAR is maintained through daily,
weekly, and monthly reporting requirements. TexST AR is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. The City's fair value
position is stated at the value of the position upon withdrawal.
A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the Statement of Net Position for the City follows:
Cash on hand
Carrying amount of deposits
Carrying amount of investments

Cash
Investments
Cash - restricted
In vestments -restricted

$

2,323

$

9,448,722
1,194,242
10,645,287
7,404,773
1,118, 142
2,046,272
76, 100
10,645,287

$

$

The City's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments in external pools, and accounts
receivable. The estimated fair value of cash, cash equivalents, investments, and accounts receivable approximate
their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
B. Receivables
Receivables as of year-end for the government's individual major funds and nonrnajor funds in the aggregate,
including the app licable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General

Industrial

Economic

Other

Development

Development

Governmental

Corporation

Corporation

Funds

Utility

Total

Receivable:
Taxes

$455,561

Accounts

73,422

Gross Receivables
Less : Allowance for

528,983

Uncollectibles

(19,926)

Net Total Receivables

509,057

$

157,436

$

157,436

$

18,906

77,077

$

789,339

907,828

1,058,327

907,828

1,847,666

157,436

234,513

18,906
(2,977)

(36,236)

15 7,436

234,5 13

15,929

87 1,592
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$

(59, 139)
1,788,527
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
Govenunental funds report defeiTed revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the cuiTent period. DefeiTed revenue in the governmental funds were as
follows:
Unavailable
$
74,669

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund)
Delinquent property taxes receivable (other governmental funds)

$

C.

11,186
85,855

Interfund receivables, payables and transfers

Interfund transfers:
Transfer In:
Transfer out:
Industrial development corporation

General

$

168,790

Economic development corporation
Nonmajor Governmental

Nonmajor
Governmental
$

Total

$

178,250
55,500
402,540

168,790
178,250
55,500
402,540

Utility

$

402,540
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$

402,540
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
D. Capital assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,201 6, was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

$

1,157,723

Increases

$

1,157,723
4,909, 155
350,218
8,068,371
10,595,466
23,923,210
( 1,8 13,867)
(240,042)
(5,724,283)
(2,914,460)
( 10,692,652)
13,230,558
$ 14,388,281

$

1, 130,984
47,977
1,178,961

600,499
146,599
763,388

$

33

$

(300,070)

(165,059)
(15,024)
(783,594)
(29 1,068)
(1,254,745)
(491 ,357)
(15,065)

298,756
(1 ,3 14)
(1,314)

522,086
522,086

$

(113,501)
(113,501)

$

1,130,984
456,562
1,587,546
56,160
24,278,703
1,524,057
25,858,920

473,11 2
473,1 12
(1,664)
( 1,046,273)
(123,862)
(1, 171,799)
(698,687)
(176,601)

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

$

(1,978,926)
(255,066)
(6,209, 121)
(3,205,528)
(11 ,648,64 1)
12,737,887
$ 14,37 1,902

298,756

$

1,237,99 1
396,024
1,634,015
4,925,445
350,2 18
8,368,800
10,742,065
24,386,528

(300,070)

Increases

56,160
24,278,703
1,050,945
25,385,808
(30,385)
(9,757,078)
(795,638)
(10,583, 101)
14,802,707
$ 15,981,668

$

16,290

Beginning
Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business-type capital assets, net

80,268
396,024
476,292

Ending
Balance

Decreases

113,501
113,501
113,501
$

(32,049)
( 10,803,351)
(805,999)
( 11 ,641 ,399)
14,2 17,52 1
$ 15,805,067
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Govenunental activities:

$

General govenunent

13 1,745
773,232

Public safety

4 6,307

Cultural and recreational

296,285

Public works

3,850

Industrial development

3,326

Economic development
Total depreciation expense- governmental activities

$

1,254,745

$

1, 17 1,799

Business-type activities:
Utility

E.

Lease

The City is currently purchasing equipment under lease purchase agreements. The interest rates on the leases range
from 2.63-7.05%. The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:
Business-type

Governmental
Asset

Activities

Activities

$

Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

$

550,000

156,350

(442,411 )

$

Total

(121 ,434)

$

107,589

34,916

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Govenunental Activities
Capital Lease

Capita l Lease

Obligations

Obligations

Year Ending
September 30
20 17

Principal

$

Business-type Activities

3 1,508

Interest

$

Principal

2,95 1

20 18

32,475

1,985

2019

32,769

997

$

96,752

$

5,933

34

$

28,428

Interest

$

12,305

$

40,733

1,222
369

$

1,59 1
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
F.

Long-term debt

Certificates of Obligation The City issues certificates of obligation to provide fund for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. Certificates of obligation have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities. Certificates
of obligation are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government and are further secured by
and payable from a pledge of the surplus net revenues derived from the operation of the City's water and sewer
system.
Certificates of obligation currently outstanding and reported as liabilities of the City's governmental activities are:

Series
2010
20 13
20 15
20 15

Issue Amollllt
1,790,000
1,090,000
569,000
294,000

Maturity

Interest

Date
8/ 15/2030
2/ 15/2028

Rate
2.0-3.9%
2.0-3.25

Year-end
Balances
$

1,735,000
975,000
489,000

$

294,000
3,493,000

General Obligation Bonds The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities. General
obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government.
General obligation bonds currently outstanding and reported as liab ilities of the City's governmental activities are:

Series
2007
20 14B

Issue Amollllt
$
1,570,000
3,680,000

Maturity

Interest

Date
8/ 15/2027
2/15/2030

Rate
4.15-4.3%
2.0-3.5%

Year-end
$
$

Balances
1,025,000
3,390,000
4,415,000

General obligation bonds currently outstanding and reported as liabilities of the City's business-type activities are:

Series
2007
20 10
20 13
20 14

Maturity

Interest

Year-end

Date

Rate

Balances

6,265,000
1,090,000
10,375,000

8/ 15/2027
8/ 15/2025

4. 15-4.3%
3.0-3.52

2/ 15/2029

1,980,000

2/15/2025

2.0-4.0
2.0-3.5%

Issue Amollllt
$

35

$

3,765,000

$

9,700,000
1,980,000
16,245,000

800,000
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
Revenue Bonds The Industrial Development Corporation's sales tax revenue refunding bonds currently outstanding and reported as
liabilities of the City's governmental activities are:

Se1ies

Issue Amount

Maturity

Interest

Date

Rate

2014

$

760,000

8/15/2023

2.44%

2015
Total

$

3,345,000

8/ 15/2026

1.81%

Year-end
Balances
$

586,000

$

3,345,000
3,931,000

Tax NotesThe City issues tax notes to provide funds for the acquisition of equipment. Tax notes have been issued for both
governmental and business-type activities. Tax notes are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the
government.
Tax notes currently outstanding and reported as liabilities of the City's governmental activities are:

Series
2014
20 14A

Issue Amount
$

20 14B

Maturity
Date

Interest
Rate
1.47%

22 1,000

2/15/2020

693,000
417,000

2/ 15/2021

1.60%

2/15/202 1

0.6-2.39%

Year-end
Balances
$

122,000

$

505,000
307,000
934,000

Tax notes currently outstanding and reported as liabilities of the City's business-type activities are:
Maturity
Series
20 14
20 14

Date

Interest
Rate

426,000

2/ 15/2020

1.47%

59,000

2/ 15/202 1

0.6-2.39%

Issue Amount
$

36

Year-end
Balances

$

258,000

$

43,000
301,000
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

Year Ending
September 30

2017
2018
2019
2020

Revenue bonds
Principal
Interest
$

2021
2022-2026

268,000
358,000
368,000
382,000

$

396,000
2,159,000

209,568
11 7,141
105,942
94,455

Note Payable
Principal
Interest
$

82,494
217,218

2027-2028
$

3,931,000

$

826,818

$

106,028
11 0,199
114,534
118,928
123,719
670,408
187,224
1,431,040

$

53,061
48,890
44,555
40, 161
35,370
100,182

$

6,180
328,399

Business-type Activities
Year Ending
September 30
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022-2026
2027-2029

General
Obligations Bonds
Principal
Interest
$
515,000
$
523,844
865,000
498,856
1,000,000
464,581
1,140,000
425,046
1,275,000
388,746
6,865,000
1,382,043
4,585,000
241,418
$ 16,245,000
$
3,924,534
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Certificates
of Obligations
Principal
Interest
$
$
90,000
34, 119
223,000
32,266
227,000
28,238
231,000
24, 130
237,000
19,942
39,948
974,000
$

1,982,000

$

178,643

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,20 16

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
Changes in long-te nn liabilities Long-tenn liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental activities:
Bonds Payable:
General obligation bonds $
Certificates of obligation
Revenue bonds
Tax notes
Less deferred amounts:
Underwriter's discount
Issuance premium
Total bonds payable
Note payable
Compensated Absences
Capital leases
TOTAL

4,580,000
2,770,000
663,000
1,171,000

$ 11 ,529,11 6

$ 17,3 13,066

Reductions

$

$
863,000
3,345,000

(1 , 190)
199,046
9,38 1,856
1,532,90 1
444,235
170, 124

Business-type activities:
Bonds Payable:
General obligation bonds $ 16,740,000
Certificates of obligation
Tax notes
380,000
Less deferred amounts:
Underwriters discount
(4,743)
Issuance premium
108,374
Total bonds payable
17,223,631
16,93 1
Compensated Absences
72,504
Capital lease payable
TOTAL

Issuance

(1 65,000)
(140,000)
(77,000)
(237,000)
77
(13,269)
(632, 192)
(1 01,86 1)
(328,83 1)
(73,372)

4,208,000
407,051

Ending
Balance

$ 4,4 15,000
3,493,000
3,931,000
934,000

Due Within
One Year

$

(1,113)
185,777
12,957,664
1,431,040
522,455
96,752

190,000
80,000
268,000
242,000
(77)
13,269
793, 192
106,028
522,455
3 1,508

$ 4 ,6 15,05 1

$ (1 , 136,256)

$ 15,007,9 11

$ 1,453,183

$

$

$ 16,245,000
1,982,000
301,000

$

(495,000)

1,982,000
(79,000)
307
(I 0,097)
(583,790)
(11 ,312)
(31 ,77 1)

1,982,000
11 ,872

$ 1,993,872

$

(626,873)

(4,436)
98,277
18,62 1,841
17,491
40,733
$ 18,680,065

515,000
90,000
80,000
(307)
10,097
694,790
17,491
28,428

$

740,709

Certificates of obligation and general obligation bonds issued for governmental activity purposes are liquidated by
the debt service fund. Revenue bonds issued for governmental activity purposes are liquidated by the Industrial
Development Corporation fund. Certificates of obligation and general obligation issued for business-type activities
are repaid from those activities.
Governmental compensated absences and capital lease ob ligations wi ll be liquidated by the General Fund. Businesstype compensated absences and capital lease obligations will be liquidated by the Water and Sewer Fund.
Governmental note payable will be liquidated by the Industrial Development Corporation. As employees have the
right to use all of their accrued absences if needed, the City has classified the entire balance as a current liability.
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NOTE 4- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
The ordinances and resolutions authorizing the issuance of the City's and the Industrial Development Corporation's
bonds provided certain requirements as follows:
Additional Bonds
This section requires, among other things, that net revenues of the City's water and sewer system amount to 1.50
times the average annual principal and interest requirements on all revenue bonds, present and proposed, in order to
issue additional revenue bonds.
Bond Reserve Fund
For the Industrial Development Corporation's 2004 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding bonds, this section requires
maintaining in the reserve fund the lesser of: (i) the maximum annual principal and interest requirement of the
Bonds; (ii) 1.25 times the average annual principal and interest requirement of the Bonds; or (iii) 10 percent of the
aggregate proceeds of the Bonds. This fund shall be used to pay principal of and/or interest on these bonds falling
due at any time when moneys in the interest and sinking fund are insufficient for such purpose and to retire the last of
the bonds that are outstanding.
Total amounts required to be restricted compared to actual funds for the Industrial Development Corporation's bonds
are as follows:
Required
at
9/30/2016
Interest and Sinking:
Sales Ta,x Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2014 - Industrial Development
Series 2015- Industrial Development
Total

$

Bond Reserve:
Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 20 14- Industrial Development
Series 20 15 - Industrial Development
Total

$

$

$

11 ,537
58,686
70,223

76,000
335,000
411,000

Actual
at
9/30/2016

$
$

$
$

Excess
or
(Deficiency)

11 ,537
58,686
70,223

$

76,000
335,538
411,538

$

$

538
538

$

G. Restricted assets

The balances of the restricted asset accounts in the proprietary fund are as fo llows:
Cash - interest and sinking account

$

65,415

$

65,515

Investment - revenue bond construction accmmt
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NOTE 5- OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City maintains commercial insurance coverage covering
each of those risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured
losses to the City. Settled claims have IWt exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
B.

Commitments

The City has entered into a contract with the Trinity River Authority of Texas- Red Oak Creek Regional Wastewater
System to obtain wastewater treatment services, expiring in 20 17. In the contract, the Authority agreed to acquire
and construct a regional wastewater treatment system to serve the City and other contractual parties, in the area of the
watershed or drainage basin of Red Oak Creek, being a tributary of the Trinity River, and located in Ellis and Dallas
Counties, Texas. The Trinity River Authority (TRA) is a governmental agency, which is controlled by directors
appointed by the governor.
The City is responsible for a proportionate share of the system's annual operation, maintenance and debt service
costs for the term of the contract. These costs are determined annually and are payable in monthly installments. The
estimated future monthly payment for the next fiscal year due under the contract at September 30, 2016 totaled
$2,7 10,000.
Actual payments for the year ended September 30, 2016 were $2,664,9 18.
The payments to be received from the City of Red Oak are used as collateral for the bonds issued by TRA to
construct the facility.
Complete separate fmancial statements for the Trinity River Authority may be obtained at Trinity River Authority of
Texas, 5300 South Collins, P.O. Box 60, Arlington, Texas 76004.
The City has entered into a contract with the City of Midlothian, Texas to combine dispatching services for both
cities, effective October 1, 2009 and expiring September 30, 2019. In the contract, the City of Midlothian will
assume and provide all dispatching services.
The City of Red Oak is responsible for a proportionate share of the cost of dispatching services for the term of the
contract. The City of Red Oak has agreed to pay the sum of $52 1,3 16 to the City of Midlothian annually for the first
three years of the contract, payable in quarterly installments. After the initial three years of the contract the costs will
be detemlined annually and are payable in quarterly installments. The estimated future monthly payments for the
next fiscal year due under contract at September 30, 20 16 totaled $52 1,3 16.
C.

Contingencies

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies. Any
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor, cannot be determined at this time although
the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

.
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
D. Texas Municipal Retirement System
Plan Description
The City participates as one of 860 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defmed benefit pension
plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System {TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State of
Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title R, Texas Govenunent Code {the TMRS
Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of T exas. The TMRS Act
places the general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the
Governor, · witl1 the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the
State of Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 40 l{a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be
obtained at W'>VW.tmrs.com
All eligible employees of the City arc required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body of
the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.
At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, and the cityfinanced monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to receive their
retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit
as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed
75% of the member's deposits and interest.
Members can retire at ages 60 and above with five or more years of service or with 20 years of service regardless of
age. A member is vested after five years. The plan provisions arc adopted by the governing, body of the City, with in
the options avai lable in the state statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes.

Employees covered by benefit terms
At the December 31, 2015 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit
terms:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

17
52
__M

ill
Contribution.
The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and the City
matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the City. Under
the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the
Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially deternlined rate is the estimated amount necessary
to fmance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability.
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Employees for the City were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year. The
contribution rates for the City were 5.3 I% and 5.81% in calendar years 2015 and 2016, respectively. The City's
contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2016, were $270,906 and were equal to the required
contributions.
Net Pension Liab ility
The City's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 3 I , 20 I 5, and the Total Pension Liability
(TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions:
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:
Inflation
Overall payroll growth
Investment Rate of Return

2.5% per year
3.0% per year
6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries
were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by I03%. The rates arc proj ected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for
future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality
Tab le is used, with slight adjustments.
Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 20 15 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience
studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the four year period from December 31, 2010 through December 31,
20 14. They were adopted in 2015 and first used in the December 3 1, 2015 valuation. Healthy post-retirement
mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study
covering 2009 through 20 I I, and dated December 3 1, 20 13. These assumptions were fust used in the December 3 I ,
2013 valuation, the System adopted the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and a one-time change to the
amortization policy. Assumptions are reviewed annually. No additional changes were made for the 20 15 valuation.
The long-term expected rate return on pension plan investments is 6.75%. The pension plan's policy in regard to the
allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets are
managed on a "total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income.
in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs or TMRS.
The long-term expected rate or return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best estimate ranges of expected fu ture real rates o f return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate o f return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates or arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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Asset Class
Domestic equity
International equity
Core fD(ed income
Non-core fixed income
Real return
Real estate
Absolute return
Private equity
Total

Target
Allocation

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate of Return
(Arithmetic)

17.5%
17.5%
10.0%
20.0%
10.0%
10.0%
10.0%
5.0%

4.55%
6.10%
1.00%
3.65%
4.03%
5.00%
4.00%
8.00%

100 0%

The Discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection or cash flows used to
determining the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified
in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pens ion plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
Total Pension Liability.
Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Balance at December 31, 2014
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Contributions- employer
Contributions- employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including contribution refunds
Administrative expenses
Other changes

Total Pension
Liability
(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
(b)

$ 5,624,035

$ 5,255,769

$ 368,266

512,394
407,51 8
34,307
251,468

(117,105)

Net changes
Balance at December 31 , 2015

Net Pension
Liability
(a)- (b)

230,360
289,761
7,757
(117, 105)
(4,724)
(234)

1.088.582

405.8 16

$__6.1 12,6 17

$ 5,661,586
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512,394
407,518
34,307
251 ,468
(230,360)
(289,761)
(7,757)
4,724
234
682.765

s
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORtVIATION (continued)
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as
what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point
lower (5.75%) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

City's net pension liability

1% Decrease in
Discount Rate
(5. 75%)

Discount Rate
(6.75%)

1% Increase in
Discount Rate
(7. 75%)

$2,207,235

$ 1,051,031

$ 113,456

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued TMRS
financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.
E. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30,20 16, the City recognized pension expense of$398,428.
At September 30, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and actual
economic experience
Difference in assumption changes
Differences between projected and actual
investment earnings
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

$ 17,496
207,505

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$

323,543
204,548
$ 753 092

Total

$==,;;

The City reported $204,548 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year
ending September 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Year ended
September 30:
20 16
20 17
20 18
20 19
2020

$ 131 ,224
131,224
131,225
11 9,41 8
35.453

T otal

$ !!48,!!44

F. Other Post-Employment Benefits
Life Insurance Benefits
The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defmed benefit group-term life insurance plan
operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund
(SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired
employees. The City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an
ordinance before November 1st of any year to be effective the following January 1st.
The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee's annual
salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death);
retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other postemployment benefit," or OPEB.
The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation. The
rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to
assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is
not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employees' entire careers.
The City's contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 20 16, 201 5, 20 14, and 20 13 were $6,648, $6, 136,
$5,280, and $4,709 respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.
Schedule of Contribution Rates
(RETIREE-only Portion of the rate)

Plan/
Calendar
Year

Annual
Required
Contribution
Rate (ARC)

Actual
Contribution
Rate

Percentage
Of ARC
Contributed

20 12
20 13
20 14
20 15

0.0 1%
0.01%
0.01 %
0.01 %

0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.0 1%

100.00%
100.00%
100 .00%
100.00%
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F. Subsequent Event
In November 20 16, the City received a rating of "AA" from "A+" by Fitch Ratings. This indicated excellent
investment quality. The rating agencies commented by giving an underlying rating of "aaa" on revenue framework
and operating perfonnance. They also conunented that the rating was reflective of the City's strong reserve position,
strong budgeting practices and moderate liability burden.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Budget Basis) and Actual
GENERAL FUND - This supplementary schedule is included to provide management additional
information for financial analysis.
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted by law or administrative action to be used for specified purposes.
Industrial Development Corporation Fund - This fund is used to account for the Red Oak Industrial
Development Corporation created under Section 4A of the D evelopment Corporation Act of 1979,
as amended , Article 5190.6, Vernon's Texas civil statutes, as amended.
Economic Development Corporation Fund - This fund is used to account for the Red Oak
Economic Development Corporation created under Section 4B of the Development Corporation
Act of 1979, as amended, Article 5190.6, Vernon's Texas civil statutes, as amended.
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Schedule of Contributions
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TMRS)
Plan Year
2014
Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest (on the total pension liability)
Diffe rence between expected and
actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions

$

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other

(15,961)

34,307
25 1,468

(85,32 1)

(117, 105)

697,044

1,088,582

4,926,99 1

5,624,035
$

6,7 12,617

$

180,299
277,399
264,49 1

$

230,360
289,761
7,757

(8 5,32 1)
(2,760)
(227)

(1 17, 105)
(4,724)
(233)

633,88 1

405,8 16

4,621,888

5,255,769

$

5,255,769

$

5,66 1,585

$

368,266

$

1,05 1,032

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability

93.45%

Covered employee payroll

$

Net pension liabili ty as a percentage
of covered employee payroll

4,623,070

7.97%

49

512,394
407,5 18

5,624,035

Plan fiduciary net position -beginning

Net Pension Liability (a) - (b)

$

$

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

440,988
357,338

2015

84.34%
$

4,829,346

2 1.76%

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
TEXAS MUNl CIP AL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TMRS)

2014
Actuarially detennined contribution

$

Fiscal Year Ending September 3 1,
20 15
2016

$

197,081

Contribution in relation to the actuarially
detenn ined contribution

220,318

$

270,906

220,3 18

197,08 1

270 ,906

Contribution deficiency
Covered employee payroll

$

$

4,399,784

Contributions as a percentage o f covered
employee payroll

4.48%

4,719,828

$

5, 113,962

4.67%

5.30%

Notes to Sched ule
Valuation date

Actuarially detennined contribution rates are calculated
as o f December 3 1 and become effective in January 13
months later.

M ethods and assumpti ons used to determine contr ibution rates:
Actuarial Cost Method

Entry age nonnal

Amortization Method

Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining Amortization Period

28 years

Asset Valuation Method

I 0 year smoothed market: 15% soft

Inflation

2.5%

Salary increases

3.50% to I 0.5% including inflat ion

Investment rate of return

6.75%

Retirement Age

Mortality

Experienced-based table of rates that are specifi c to the
City's plan of benefits. Last updated for the 20 15
valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period
20 10-20 14.
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with blue collar
adjustment with mal e rates multiplied by I09% and
female rates multiplied by I 03% and proj ected on a fully
generational basis with scale BB.

Other infonnation:
Notes

There were no benefi t changes during the year.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Nonmajor Govenuuental Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted by law or administrative action to be used for specified purposes.
Tourism Fund - This fund is used to account for Hotel/Motel taxes received for historic preservation and
tourism promotion as authorized by statute.

DEBT SERVICE FUND - The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the
payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt.

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS - Capital project funds are used to account for the frnancial resources segregated for
the acquisition of major capital facilities other than those frnanced by enterprise funds.
Park Improvements- These funds will be used to develop a Multi-Use Outdoor Recreation Facility located
on Highway 342.

Street and Drainage - These funds will be used to account for street reconstruction and drainage
improvements.
Bond Construction - These funds will be used to account for street reconstruction and drainage
in1provements.

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
COMBrNrNG BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJ ORGO VE~~NTALFUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2016

Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables - net of allowance
for uncollectible

$

190,1 57 $

Nonmajor
Debt
Service

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Nomnajor
Capital
Projects

92,378 $

153,324 $
33,150

15,929

435,859
33,150
15,929

Total assets

$

190,157 $

108,307 $

186,474 $

484,938

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

$

14,551 $

$

$

14,551

14,551

Total liabilities
DEFERRED rNFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - Property taxes
Total inflows of resources
FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Retirement of long-term debt
Capital projects
Committed:
Cultural and recreaction

11 ,186

11,186

II , 186

11 ,186

97, 121
186,474
175,606
175,606

Total fund balances
Total liabil ities, deferred inflows and fund balances

14,551

$

190,157 $

51

97,121
186,474
175,606

97,121
108,307 $

186,474

459,20 1

186,474 $

484,938

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Revenues
Property taxes
Hotel occupancy tax
Licenses and permits
Revenues from use of money and property
Other revenues

Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
$

$

23,824

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds
759,651
165, 188
40,584
64,324
23,824

64,408

1,053,57 1

Nonmajor
Capital
Projects
$

165,188
40,584
64,324

Total revenues

229,512

Expenditures
Current:
Cultural and recreational
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay:
Public works

759,65 1

116,719

11 6,719
462,000
299,387

Total expenditures

116,7 19

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

112,793

Other financing sources
Refunding bonds issued
Premium or discount on issuance of bonds
Payment to bond refunding escrow agent
Transfers out
Total other fmancing sources
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year

Nonmajor
Debt
Service
759,65 1 $

$

76 1,387

(I ,736)

462,000
299,387
33,436

33,436

33 ,436

911,542

30,972

142,029

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55 ,500)

57,293

(1,736)

30,972

86,529

11 8,3 13

98,857

155,502

372,672

175,606 $

97' 121 $

186,474 $

459,201
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
COMBfriTNGBALANCESHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 20 16

Tourism

Total

ASSETS
Cash

$

190,157 $

190,157

Total assets

$

190, 157 $

190,157

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

$

14,55 1 $

14,55 1

14,551

14,55 1

175,606

175,606

175,606

175,606

190,157 $

190, 157

Total liabilities
FUND BALANCES
Committed:
Cultural and recreaction
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

$
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2016

Tourism
Revenues
Hotel occupancy tax
Revenues from use of money and property

Total

165, 188 $
64,324

165, 188
64,324

229,5 12

229,512

11 6,7 19

116,7 19

Total expenditures

11 6,7 19

116,7 19

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

112,793

112,793

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

57,293

57,293

118,3 13

11 8,3 13

175,606 $

175,606

$

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Cul tural and recreaction

Other fmancing sources
Transfers out
Total other fmanciog sources
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year
$

Fund balances at end of year
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CITY OF RED OAK, T EXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET (BUDGET BASIS) Al'ID ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20 !6
Tourism
Original
Budgeted
Amounts
Revenues
Hotel occupancy tax
Revenues from use of money and property
Other

s

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Cultural and recreaction
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Tra nsfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Final
Budgeted
Amounts

Actual

GAAP
Basis

s

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (under)
Budget

Actual
Budget
Basis

! 35 ,700 $
50,000
1,4 13

!65, 188
64,324

175,000

187,113

229,5!2

229,5!2

42,399

!1 9,500

131,6 13

116,7 19

116,7 19

(14,894)

119,500

131,613

116,719

11 6,7!9

(1 4,894)

55,500

55,500

11 2,793

112,793

57,293

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

(55,500)

57,293

57,293

Fund balances at beginning of year

11 8,313

s

s

55

175,606

$

s

125,000
50,000

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at end of year

Adjustments
Budget
Basis

165, 188
64,324

29,488
14,324
(1,413)

57,293

(1 18,3 13)

s

(11 8,3 13)$

57,293

s

57,293

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET (BUDGET BASIS) AN D ACTUAL
NO]'fMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED S"EPTEMBER 30, 2016
Original
and Final
Budgeted
Amounts
Revenues
Property taxes
Interest

Actual
GAAP
Basis

748,000 $
1,000

759,651 $

Total revenues

749,000

Expenditures
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Adjustments
Budget
Basis

Actual
Budget
Basis

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (under)
Budget

759,65 1 $

11 ,65 1
( 1,000)

759,65 1

759,651

10,65 1

497,000
276,287

462,000
299,387

462,000
299,387

(35,000)
23,100

Total expenditures

773,287

76 1,387

761,387

( II ,900)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

(24,287)

(1,736)

(I ,736)

22,55 1

(24,287)

( I ,736)

(1,736)

22,55 1

24,287

98,857

98,857

74,570

97,121 $

97,12 1

$

$

Other financing sources (uses)
Refunding bonds issued
Premium or discount on issuance of bonds
Payment to bond refunding escrow agent
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year

$

$
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97,12 1 $

$

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
COMBfriTNGBALANCESHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
Park
Improvements

Total

ASSETS
Cash
Investments

$

153,324 $
33, 150

153 ,324
33, 150

Total Assets

$

186,474 $

186,474

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

$

$

Total liabilities
FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Capital projects
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

$
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186,474

186,474

186,474

186,474

186,474 $

186,474

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20 16
Park
Improvements
Revenues
Licenses and permits
Other

Total

40,584 $
23,824

40,584
23,824

64,408

64,408

33,436

33,436

Total expenditures

33,436

33,436

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

30,972

30,972

30,972

30,972

155,502

155,502

186,474 $

186,474

$

Total revenues
Expenditures
Capital outlay:
Public works

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year
$

Fund balances at end of year
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Proprietary Fund

ENTERPRISE FUND- The City's utility operations are accounted for in this fund.

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET (BUDGET BASIS) AND ACTUAL
UTILITY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SE PTEMBER 30,20 16

Operating revenues:
Charges for services - water
Charges for services - sewer
Tap fees and reconnects
Penalties
Miscellaneous

s

Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Personnel
Insurance
Supplies
Contractual services
Maintenance
Other
Depreciation

Final
Budgeted
Amounts

2,300,000 $
2,703,750
175,000
130,000
70,250

2,320,000
2,703,750
175,000
130,000
272,042

5,379,000

5,600,792

6,369,552

6,369,552

768,760

698, 194
125,766
132,000
3,20 1,739
1, 190,475
143,500

703 ,41 6
136,896
160,717
3,356,748
1,741 ,361
106,675

679,805
124,795
144,206
3,30 1,964
232,987
95,336
1, 171,799

679,805
124,795
144,206
3,301,964
1,228, 185
95,336

(23,6 11 )
(12,101)
(1 6,5 11)
(54,784)
(5 13, 176)
( 11 ,339)

(1 ,171,799)

5,750,892

(1 76,601)

5,574,291

(63 1,522)

176,601

5,49 1,674

Total expenses

Actual
GAAP
Basis

s

6,205,8 13

2,513,915
3,128,500
120,040
159,858
447,239

Operating income

( 11 2,674)

(605,021)

6 18,660

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest on investments
Principal retirement
Interest and fi scal charges
Bond issuance costs

2,539
(579,000)
(6 14,045)

2,539
(579,000)
(586,698)

1,4 12

(I , 190,506)

( 1' 163, 159)

(709,370)

( 1,303, 180)

( 1,768, 180)

(90,7 10)

1,0 11 ,675
30,000

I ,526,675
30,000

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Loss before transfers
Issuance of bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Net position at end of year

s

Adjustments
Budget
Basis

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (under)
Budget

Original
Budgeted
Amounts

Actual
Budget
Basis

s

s

995,198

2,513,915
3, 128,500
120,040
159,858
447,239

s

795,26 1

(98,04 7)
(26,037)

(579,000)

(1,288,370)

( 125,2 11)

(402,399)

(493, 109)

1,275,07 1

(684,745)
(26,037)

(1 , 127)

( 1,526,675)
(30,000)

(2 11,505)

(90,7 10)

(402,399)

( 493,1 09)

26 1,505

2 11,505

837,794

(626,289)

2 11,505

(I ,028,688) S

(28 1,604)

s
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1,400,282

1,4 12
(579,000)
(684,745)
(26,037)

(579,000)

(26 1,505)

s

193,9 15
424,750
(54,960)
29,858
175,197

747,084

s

(28 1,604)

s

(28 1,604)

Supplementary Financial Data

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CASH BALANCES- ALL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,20 16
General Fund
Cash on hand
Cash in bank- operating

SQecial Revenue Funds
Cash on hand
Cash in bank- operating

Cash in bank- restricted

$

Operating
PEG Fees
Payroll
Bond Proceeds
State Forfeited Contraband
Seized Funds
Municipal Court Building Security
Municipal Court Teclmology
Crime Prevention
Training
Police Department Reserve
Police Donation
Fire Donation
Reserve

Industrial Development Corporation
Economic Development Corporation
Tourism
Industrial Development Corporation
Economic Development Corporation
Bond Proceeds - Industrial Development
Corporation
Bond Reserve - Industrial Development
Corporation
Interest and Sinking- Industrial
Development Corporation

1,823
594,352
41 ,495
387
29,456
9,862
21,925
13,885
923
3,547
6,703
197
1,249
1,272
66 1,606

$

50
50
190,157
3,159,741
1,474,606
290,000
335,538
70,223

5,520,365

Deb t Service Fund
Cash in bank- operating
CaQital Projects Funds
Cash in bank- operating
Ente!l2rise Fund- Utilitv
Cash on hand
Cash in bank- operating
Cash in bank- restricted

1,388,682

92,3 78

153,324

Park Improvements

Water & Sewer Construction
Eastridge Sewer Upgrade
Interest and Sinking
Water and Sewer Reserve

153,324

400
943,302
1,035,2 11
31,539
65,415
220,429

Certifi cate of deposit- operating

2,296,296
$
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9,45 1,045

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS- ALL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2016
General Fund
TexSTAR- operating

0.0994%

8 18,588

$

8 18,588

Sgecial Revenue Funds
Texpool
Texpool- restricted
Tex pool

Industrial Development Corporation
Industrial Development Corporation
Economic Development Corporation

0 .0188%
0.0 188%
0.018 8%

54,970
76,000
30,000

160,970

Cagital Projects Fund
Texpool

Park Improvement

0.01 88%

33, 150

33,150

Sewer Construction

0.0 188%
0.0 188%
0.0994%

100
100
181,334

18 1,534

Entemrise Fund
Texpool- operati.ng
Texpool- restricted
TexSTAR- operating

$

61

1,194,242

STATISTICAL SECTION

CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL FACTS
SEPTH,iffiER 30,20 16
Net Taxable Assessed Property Value

$

724, 103,090

Ad Valorem Tax Rate:
Operations
Debt
Total

$
$
$

0.5443
0.1047
0.6490

Ad Valorem collections for the year:
Current
Delinquent
Penalties and Interest

$
$
$

4,633,578
55,383
29,327
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
INSURANCE IN FORCE
SEPTEMBER 30, 20 16
Policy
Number
I.

LIABILITY COVERAGE
A. GENERAL LIABILITY
Texas Municipal League

5093

Policl: Period
From
To

.1 0/0 1/ 15

10/01/16

13. AUTOMOI3ILE LIABILITY
AND PHYSICAL DAMAGE
Texas Municipal League

$1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 annual aggregate
$ I ,000 deductible per occurrence

D. ERRORS AND OMISSIONS
LIABILITY
Texas Muni cipal League

II.

PROPERTY COVERAGE
Texas Municipal League

$1,000 per occurance
$2,000 annual aggregate
$0 deductible per occurrence

$1,000,000 per occurrence
Per Schedule and Endorsements
$25,000 each person
Various deductible per occurrence

C. LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY
Texas Municipal League

E. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY
Western Surely Company

Coverage

$1,000,000 each wrongful act
$2,000,000 annual aggregate
$1,000 deductible per occurrence

68335426

12/ 10/ 15

12/10/ 16

$10,000 per employee covered (18)

5093

10/01/15

10/0 1/16

$2,500 deductible
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CITY OF RED OAK, TEXAS
INSURANCE IN FORCE
SEPTEMBER 30,2016
Policy
Number

Policy Period
From
To

A. REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY

13. MOBILE EQUrPMENT

$414,821
$1,000 deductible

C. BOILER AND MACHINERY
COMPREHENSIVE COVERAGE

III.

ADDITIONAL COVERAGE
Texas Municipal League

Coverage
$8,223,950 limited of coverage (Blanket limit/occurrence)
$2,500 deductible- real and personal
$25,000 deductible- flood and earthquake
$ 1,000,000 transit limit

$500,000 per accident
$2,500 deductible
5093

1011/15

10/1116

A. VALUABLE PAPERS, RECORDS,
AND EDP MEDIA

$50,000

B. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

$ 10,000

C. LOSS OF REVENUES, EXTRA
EXPENSE AND RENTS

$78,000

D. PERSONAL PROPERTY OF
EMPLOYEES AND OFFICIALS

$5,000

E. LEASEHOLD INTEREST

$10,000

F. POLLUTANT CLEAN UP AND REMOVAL

$10,000 (each premises)

G. OUTDOOR TREES AND SHRUI3S

$10,000 ($250 each)
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